
MEMORANDUM 

TO: Town Council  

FROM: David E. Cox, Town Manager  

DATE: April 20, 2023 

SUBJECT: Agenda Information – 4/25/2023 

The following is additional or summary information regarding matters on the upcoming Town Council 
Agenda.  The numbering below follows the agenda, and some routine or self-explanatory items are not 
discussed in this memo.  As you review your packet materials, please do not hesitate to contact the 
appropriate staff member or me prior to the Council meeting with any questions or concerns.  

7 Resolutions/Ordinances/Policies/Proclamations 
7a Fair Housing Resolution – The Council is asked to adopt this annual resolution updating the 
Town’s commitment to upholding and enforcing the doctrine of fair housing for all within the 
community. 

Recommendation:  Approve the Resolution. 

9 New Business 
9a Discussion and possible consideration of actions related to the Town’s FY 2024 Annual Budget 
- The Council is asked to discuss and consider the proposed fiscal year 2023/2024 Town Budgets for
Education and General Government and the Town’s Capital Improvement Plan.  The budgets and plan
were developed over several meetings including those of the Capital Improvements Committee, the
Board of Education, and the Board of Finance.  The Board of Finance recommended budget was received
by the Town Council prior to its April 11 meeting.  The total recommended budget is $53,603,971,
including $35,608,655 for Education and $17,995,316 for General Government, which is divided among
Town government expenses ($13,020,881), Debt Service ($4,122,435) and Transfers/Capital
Improvement ($852,000).  The current version of the budget, which is included in the packet, is also
posted on the Town website in the Finance Department as the Board of Finance Proposed FY 2024
Budget.  When the Council is prepared to approve a budget for referendum, it is asked to set the Annual
Town Meeting and referendum dates.  Based on the various timelines for notice to the community of
the Town Meeting and referendum, a Town meeting could occur two weeks after the determination is
made and the referendum could occur one week after the Town Meeting.  Once approved, the budget
document will be issued as the Town Council Recommended Budget and posted to the Town website.
The Council is also asked to consider and approve the Capital Improvements Plan for FY2024 as
recommended by the Board of Finance as included in the draft budget.  The Council will ultimately need
actions to determine the recommended budget amounts, call the Town Meeting, adjourn consideration
of the budgets to referendum, approve the Capital Improvements Plan and approve any use of ARPA
funds for capital improvements and purchases.

Recommendation:  Discuss and determine how and when to move ahead. 

https://www.easthamptonct.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif7556/f/pages/board_of_finance_proposed_fy_2024_budget_binder.pdf
https://www.easthamptonct.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif7556/f/pages/board_of_finance_proposed_fy_2024_budget_binder.pdf


Town Council - Agenda Information – 4/25/2023 
April 20, 2023 
Page 2 
 

 
 

 
9b Discussion and possible consideration of actions to approve the Prevention Partnership Youth 
Survey – Pursuant to policy, the Council is asked to consider and approve the Prevention Partnership’s 
Youth Survey, which is taken every two years as a condition of the grant that funds the alcohol and drug 
use prevention activities of the Town.  The survey, which was also approved by the Board of Education 
earlier this month, includes questions required by the CDC as well as other questions developed locally 
to help identify local prevention needs and attitudes.  Once approved, the survey will be administered to 
youth in grades 6 through 12 during a school day in May. 
 
 Recommendation:  Approve the survey. 
 
9c Discussion and possible action regarding participation in the Regional Housing Committee – 
The Council is asked to determine whether the Town of East Hampton will participate in the Regional 
Housing Committee, which was created by the Lower Connecticut River Valley Council of Governments 
(RiverCOG) in follow up to the Regional Housing Plan developed last year among the member Towns, 
including East Hampton.  The Regional Housing Committee is intended to provide a forum for ongoing 
coordination and collaboration on housing issues among the RiverCOG municipalities that choose to 
participate with the goal of improving housing diversity and opportunity in the region.  The Planning and 
Zoning Commission reviewed whether the Town should participate in the voluntary Housing Committee 
and recommended to the Council that East Hampton participate.  If the Town will participate, the 
Council should determine whether the Planning and Zoning Commission, the Town Manager or the 
Town Council will appoint the Town member.  The Town’s member on the Regional Planning 
Commission is appointed by the Planning and Zoning Commission and it is suggested that the 
Commission could appoint this member as well. 
 
 Recommendation:  Approve participation in the Committee and direct the Planning and Zoning 
Commission to make the appointment. 
 
9d Discussion and possible action regarding the Town Manager’s wage adjustment and contract 
extension – In follow up to the evaluation undertaken earlier this month, the Council is asked to 
determine any wage adjustment for the Town Manager in fiscal year 2024.  Further, the Council may 
determine to adjust the term of the Town Manager’s contract, which automatically moves to a year-to-
year basis beginning on September 1, 2023. 
 
 Recommendation:  Determine any wage adjustment, effective July 1, 2023. 
 
The remainder of the items are of a routine nature, in the sole purview of the Council or are 
announcements.  Please contact me or the appropriate staff member with questions or concerns.  



Town Council Special Meeting 1 4/4/2023 Minutes 

Town of East Hampton 
Town Council Special Meeting 

Tuesday, April 4, 2023 
Town Hall 2nd Floor Conference Room #201 

MINUTES 

Present: Chairman Mark Philhower, Vice Chairman Tim Feegel, Council Members Pete Brown, 
Brandon Goff, Eric Peterson, Kevin Reich and Alison Walck and Town Manager David Cox 

Call to Order & Pledge of Allegiance 
Chairman Philhower called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Town Hall 2nd Floor Meeting 
Room #201. 

Adoption of Agenda 
A motion was made by Mr. Goff, seconded by Ms. Walck, to adopt the agenda as presented. Voted 
(7-0) 

Executive Session 
Town Manager Evaluation 
A motion was made by Mr. Goff, seconded by Mr. Peterson, to enter Executive Session at 6:32pm 
with Town Manager David Cox invited into the session. Voted (7-0) 

Executive Session ended at 7:43pm. 

Possible Action on Executive Session Item 
Chairman Philhower asked the members to review the information presented for a vote at the April 
25, 2023 meeting regarding salary and the contract for the Town Manager. 

A motion was made by Mr. Goff, seconded by Ms. Walck, to table the contract discussions to the 
April 25, 2023 meeting.  Voted (7-0) 

Adjournment 
A motion was made by Mr. Brown, seconded by Mr. Goff, to adjourn the meeting at 7:44pm.  Voted 
(7-0) 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Cathy Sirois 
Recording Clerk 
Minutes transcribed from notes taken by Town Manager Cox 

Agenda Item 3a



Town Council Regular Meeting 1 4/11/2023 Minutes 

Town of East Hampton 
Town Council Regular Meeting 

Tuesday, April 11, 2023 
Town Hall Council Chambers #107 and Zoom 

MINUTES 

Present: Vice Chairman Tim Feegel, Council Members Pete Brown, Brandon Goff, Kevin Reich 
and Alison Walck and Town Manager David Cox 

Not Present:  Chairman Mark Philhower and Eric Peterson 

Call to Order & Pledge of Allegiance 
Vice Chairman Feegel called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Town Hall Council Chambers 
and via Zoom. 

Adoption of Agenda 
A motion was made by Ms. Walck, seconded by Mr. Goff, to adopt the agenda with a change to 
add an item to Continued Business for an Update on the Gazebo Planting Plan. Voted (5-0) 

Approval of Minutes 
A motion was made by Ms. Walck, seconded by Mr. Reich, to approve the minutes of the Town 
Council Regular Meeting of March 28, 2023 as written. Voted (5-0) 

Public Hearing 
Amendment to Chapter 278 – Taxation of the Code of the Town of East Hampton Regarding 
Modification of Tax Relief Programs 

Amendment to Chapter 18 – Commission on Aging of the Code of the Town of East Hampton 
Regarding Adding Alternate Members 

A motion was made by Mr. Reich, seconded by Mr. Goff, to open the Public Hearings for Chapter 
278 Taxation and Chapter 18 Commission on Aging.  Voted (5-0). 

No comments were made. 

The Public Hearing was closed. 

Public Remarks 
None 

Presentations 
None  

Bids & Contracts 
None 

Resolution/ Ordinances/ Policies/ Proclamations 
Consideration of a Motion to Approve an Amendment to Chapter 278 – Taxation of the Code 
of the Town of East Hampton Regarding Modification of Tax Relief Programs 

Agenda Item 3b



 
Town Council Regular Meeting  2 4/11/2023 Minutes  

A motion was made by Ms. Walck, seconded by Mr. Goff, to approve an amendment to Chapter 
278 – Taxation of the Code of the Town of East Hampton regarding modification of tax relief 
programs as presented.  Voted (5-0). 
 
Consideration of a Motion to Approve an Amendment to Chapter 18 – Commission on Aging 
of the Code of the Town of East Hampton Regarding Adding Alternate Members 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Walck, seconded by Mr. Reich, to approve an amendment to Chapter 
18 – Commission on Aging of the Code of the Town of East Hampton regarding adding two 
alternate members as presented.  Voted (5-0). 
 
Continued Business 
Sub-Committee Reports & Updates  
Mr. Reich reported that the Middle School Roof Committee met.  They reviewed and accepted the 
plans.  They were previously approved by the Board of Education.  The plans are now at the 
Department of Administrative Services and once approved can go out to bid. 
 
Update on Belltown Garden Club Gazebo Planting Plan 
Ms. Walck reported that the Department of Public Works assisted at the gazebo by digging up the 
old plants and spreading topsoil that was donated by Paul’s and Sandy’s.  Park & Rec will be putting 
down mulch.  The Garden Club will be purchasing window boxes for annuals until the final planting 
is done in the summer. 
 
New Business 
Review and Possible Action on an Amendment to the Library Collection Policy 
Library Director Tim Kellogg provided an overview of the amendment to the Library Collection 
Policy, which creates a new section describing policies around Special Collections, including a 
range of specialized materials from historic documents, original works and works of local authors.  
The amendment was approved by the Library Advisory Board. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Goff, seconded by Ms. Walck, to approve the amendment to the Library 
Circulation Policy as presented.  Voted (5-0). 
 
Town Manager’s Report 
Mr. Cox provided his written report for the Council members which will be included with the 
minutes filed in the Town Clerk’s Office.  Mr. Cox called out a few points from the report including: 

1. Sewer payment 2nd installments are due by the end of April. 
2. The status of the new police vehicle is still unknown.  It was thought that a VIN and estimated 

delivery date were available, but this was incorrect. It is possible the order could be cancelled.  
The vendor is working on the issue. 

3. Library Director Tim Kellogg is leaving on April 24th.  The position has been advertised. Mr. 
Cox thanked Mr. Kellogg for all he has done while working with at the Library. 

 
Mr. Brown asked about the status of the water project.  Mr. Cox reported that last week they pulled 
some final information from the WPCA and are doing the last check of their hydraulic model. 
 
Vice Chairman Feegel asked if the sand was reclaimed at Sears Park.  Mr. Cox reported that it was 
done over the winter. 
 
 



Town Council Regular Meeting 3 4/11/2023 Minutes 

Appointments 
None 

Tax Refunds 
A motion was made by Ms. Walck, seconded by Mr. Goff, to approve tax refunds in the amount of 
$1,591.66.  Voted (5-0) 

Public Remarks 
Library Director Tim Kellogg thanked Mr. Cox for his kind remarks and noted it was a pleasure to 
work for the Town and the Library. 

Communications, Correspondence & Announcements 
March 2023 Board and Commission Summary 
Members received the March 2023 Board and Commission Summary. 

Adjournment 
A motion was made by Mr. Goff, seconded by Ms. Walck, to adjourn the meeting at 6:50pm.  Voted 
(5-0) 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Cathy Sirois 
Recording Clerk 



 Office of the TOWN MANAGER 

DAVID E. COX 
dcox@easthamptonct.gov 

TOWN COUNCIL 

Mark Philhower 
Chairman 

Tim Feegel 
Vice Chairman 

Pete Brown 

Brandon Goff 

Eric Peterson 

Kevin Reich 

Alison Walck 

1 Community Drive, East Hampton, CT  06424  |  860.267.4468 tel    |   860.267.1027 fax   |   www.easthamptonct.gov 

FAIR HOUSING RESOLUTION 
TOWN OF EAST HAMPTON, CT 

Whereas, All persons are afforded a right to full and equal housing opportunities in 
the neighborhood of their choice; and  

Whereas, Federal fair housing laws require that all individuals, regardless of race, 
color, religion, sex, handicap, familial status or national origin, be given equal access 
to all housing-related opportunities, including rental and homeownership 
opportunities, and be allowed to make free choices regarding housing location; and 

Whereas, Connecticut fair housing laws require that all individuals, regardless of 
race, creed, color, national origin, ancestry, sex, marital status, age, lawful source of 
income, familial status, learning disability, physical or mental disability, sexual 
orientation, or gender identity or expression be given equal access to all housing-
related opportunities, including rental and home ownership opportunities, and be 
allowed to make free choices regarding housing location; and 

Whereas, the Town of East Hampton is committed to upholding these laws and 
realizes that these laws must be supplemented by an Affirmative Statement publicly 
endorsing the right of all people to full and equal housing opportunities in the 
neighborhood of their choice. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOVED, That the Town of East Hampton hereby 
endorses a Fair Housing Policy to ensure equal opportunity for all persons to rent, 
purchase, obtain financing and enjoy all other housing-related services of their 
choice on a non-discriminatory basis as provided by state and federal law; and   

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Chief Executive Officer of the Town of 
East Hampton or his designated representative is responsible for responding to and 
assisting any person who alleges to be the victim of an illegal discriminatory housing 
practice in the Town of East Hampton and for advising such person of the right to 
file a complaint with the State of Connecticut Commission on Human Rights and 
Opportunities (CHRO) or the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
(HUD) or to seek assistance from the CT Fair Housing Center, legal services, or 
other fair housing organizations to protect his or her right to equal housing 
opportunities. 

Adopted by the Town of East Hampton on Tuesday, April 25, 2023

______________________________ ______________________________ 
Mark A. Philhower                 Kelly Bilodeau 
Town Council Chairman  Town Clerk 

Agenda Item 7a



Agenda Item 9b























































Agenda Item 12



Agenda Item 14a



Agenda Item 14b



























Agenda Item 14c
















